
From: Wiitala, Kristal (DSHS/PER)  

Sent: Friday, August 17, 2012 5:41 PM 
To: Ford, Tim (ATG) 

Cc: Krueger, Kevin (DSHS/ERMO); Lashway, Patricia (DSHS/PER); Dotson, Steve (DSHS/ERMO); 
Brombacher, Millie A. (DSHS/ERMO) 

Subject: RE: RCW 40-14-030 proposal edits.doc 

 
 
Thanks, Tim, for getting back to me.  I apologize for the delay in responding to your questions. 
 
While appreciating the intent behind making records more available to the public, we still have 
significant questions about the proposal so that the Department of Social and Health Services is 
not able to take a position on it at this time.  This response is not a formal position of the 
Department but just my answers to your below questions.  We would be glad to meet with you 
in person to address our questions and concerns and work towards a solution that will allow us 
to comply with the various regulations and laws that govern our business.   
 
Because the bulk of DSHS activities center around client services, almost every position and 
program deals continuously with confidential client records.  The involvement with confidential 
matters extends to the managerial and executive level, whose archival correspondence and 
subject files frequently and necessarily contain identifying information about our clients.  While 
we believe the public has a right to access our business records, state and federal laws make 
clear that the confidentiality of our client information must be maintained and that the 
protection is permanent.   We strive to make records as accessible as possible to the public 
while redacting the information needed to protect the privacy rights of our clients.  This 
extremely sensitive client information can appear in almost any kind of Department record, 
including the categories of archival records such as executive level records.  Those privacy rights 
are absolute under the applicable laws and are not based on any balancing or other test, but 
simply on the nature of the records.   
 
You mentioned HIPAA as one of the applicable laws and that law makes it clear that its 
protections extend permanently and states in 45 CFR §164.502(f) that “[a] covered entity must 
comply with the [privacy rule] with respect to the protected health information of a deceased 
individual.”  HIPAA also provides that it pre-empts any state law that is less protective of 
individual privacy, 45 CFR §160.203.  DSHS, as a covered entity, has an obligation to safeguard 
and maintain the confidentiality of its records.  The protection extends to PHI in any kind of 
records held by the covered entity. For example, this week we received a complaint from the 
DHHS Office for Civil Rights based on the failure to redact a patient’s name mentioned in 
personnel records that were produced to an attorney in response to a public records request 
and must respond to these allegations.   
 
Some of the state laws that apply to exempt information in Department records include the 
following, most of which are implementing federal statutes or regulations, and none of which 
have expiration periods: 

 RCW 13.50.100:  Child welfare records which provides that recipients of child welfare 
records must keep them in compliance with applicable laws and protect against 
unauthorized disclosure. 



 RCW 26.23.120:  Makes confidential child support enforcement records and imposes a 
penalty of a gross misdemeanor for violations. 

 Chapter 70.02 RCW: Protects health care information of patients in state hospitals and 
programs, specifically defined to include “a deceased individual who has received health 
care” in RCW 70.02.010(12). Civil remedies, damages and attorney fees are available for 
violations in RCW 70.02.170. 

 RCW 70.096A.150:  Chemical dependency records are strictly confidential and 
incorporates the federal confidentiality regulations in 42 CFR Part 2, which include 
criminal penalties of up to $500 for a first violation and up to $5000 for additional 
offenses in 45 CFR § 2.4. 

 RCW 71.05.390:  Prohibits release of even the fact of admission or treatment for 
persons receiving mental health services. Damages of $1000 or treble actual damages 
are available for violations plus attorney fees under RCW 71.05.440. 

 RCW 74.04.060:  Records of applicants and recipients of public assistance with a penalty 
of a gross misdemeanor for violations of confidentiality. 

 RCW 74.34.095:  Making all records of adult protective services investigations wholly 
exempt from disclosure unless ordered available by a court or ALJ. 

 
I am not clear how the proposal to amend RCW 40.14.030 that appears to put an end date on 
exemptions would interfaces with all of these other statutory protections. Possibly there could 
be some recognition added of protections in other applicable state and federal laws.  
 
I hope this answers your questions and is helpful. Again, apologies for the delay.  I just realized 
your meeting is Tuesday  and I am out on Monday and otherwise committed on Tuesday, so if 
you have questions about these privacy laws or want to discuss any of this on Monday, you can 
call Patricia Lashway, Senior Director, Office of Policy and External Relations, at 360-902-7812.  If 
there are retention issues for the Department that you need addressed, you can contact Kevin 
Krueger or his staff, copied above.   
 
Kristal K. Wiitala, J.D. 
Department of Social and Health Services 
DSHS Public Records/Privacy Officer 
Office of Policy and External Relations 
PO Box 45135; Olympia WA  98504-5135 
Phone:  360-902-7649; Fax:  360-902-7855 
Email:  DSHSPublicDisclosure@dshs.wa.gov 
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